

# Indigo Books & Music Inc. - General Merchandise

X12/V4010/860: 860 Purchase Order Change Request - Buyer Initiated

**Version: 1 Final** 

Author: InterTrade

Company: Indigo Books & Music Inc.

Publication: 2020-11-18

### **Table of Contents**

860 Pu	rchase Order Change Request - Buyer Initiated	1
ISA	Interchange Control Header	3
GS	Functional Group Header	5
ST	Transaction Set Header	7
всн	Beginning Segment for Purchase Order Change	8
REF	Reference Identification	9
FOB	F.O.B. Related Instructions	10
CSH	Sales Requirements	12
DTM	Date/Time Reference	13
TD5	Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)	14
N9	Loop Reference Identification	15
N9	Reference Identification	16
MSG	Message Text	17
N1	Loop Name	18
N1	Name · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	19
N2	Additional Name Information	21
N3	Address Information	22
N4	Geographic Location	23
POC	Loop Line Item Change	24
POC	Line Item Change	25
CTP	Pricing Information	27
PID	Loop Product/Item Description	28
PID	Product/Item Description	29
PO4	Item Physical Details	30
N9	Loop Reference Identification	31
N9	Reference Identification	32
MSG	Message Text	33
CTT	Loop Transaction Totals	34
CTT	Transaction Totals	35
SE	Transaction Set Trailer	36
GE	Functional Group Trailer	37
IEA	Interchange Control Trailer	38
	Appendix	39
	All Included Elements in All Included Segments	39

### 860

## **Purchase Order Change Request - Buyer Initiated**

### Functional Group=PC

**Purpose:** This Draft Standard for Trial Use contains the format and establishes the data contents of the Purchase Order Change Request - Buyer Initiated Transaction Set (860) for use within the context of an Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) environment. The transaction set can be used to provide the information required for the customary and established business and industry practice relative to a purchase order change. This transaction can be used: (1) by a buyer to request a change to a previously submitted purchase order or (2) by a buyer to confirm acceptance of a purchase order change initiated by the seller or by mutual agreement of the two parties.

#### Not Defined:

HOL Dell	iiicu.									
<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>			
	ISA	Interchange Control Header	M	1			Must use			
	GS	Functional Group Header	M	1			Must use			
Heading:										
<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>			
010	ST	Transaction Set Header	M	1			Must use			
020	ВСН	Beginning Segment for Purchase Order Change	M	1			Must use			
050	REF	Reference Identification	0	>1			Used			
080	FOB	F.O.B. Related Instructions	0	>1			Used			
110	CSH	Sales Requirements	M	5			Must use			
150	DTM	Date/Time Reference	0	10			Used			
240	TD5	Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)	С	12			Used			
LOOP ID - N9					1000					

LOOP	LOOP ID - N9					
285	N9	Reference Identification	0	1		Used
290	MSG	Message Text	0	1000		Used

LOOP	<u>ID - N1</u>		<u>200</u>			
300	N1	Name	M	1		Must use
310	N2	Additional Name Information	0	2		Used
320	N3	Address Information	С	2		Used
330	N4	Geographic Location	С	>1		Used

#### Detail:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
LOOP I	D - POC				<u>&gt;1</u>		
010	POC	Line Item Change	M	1			Must use
 040	CTP	Pricing Information	М	>1			Must use
<u>LOOP ID - PID</u> <u>1000</u>							
050	PID	Product/Item Description	M	1			Must use
090	PO4	Item Physical Details	0	>1			Used
LOOP ID - N9 1000							
320	N9	Reference Identification	0	1			Used

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>	
330	MSG	Message Text	0	1000			Used	

#### **Summary:**

_	<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
	LOOP I	D - CTT				1	N3/010L	
	010	CTT	Transaction Totals	M	1		N3/010	Must use
	030	SE	Transaction Set Trailer	М	1			Must use

#### **Not Defined:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
	GE	Functional Group Trailer	M	1			Must use
	IEA	Interchange Control Trailer	M	1			Must use

#### **Notes:**

3/010L Number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of POC segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (POC03) for each POC segment.

3/010 Number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of POC segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (POC03) for each POC segment.

#### **User Note 1:**

#### Change History:

November 2020:

Change usage of N9\_02 from Relational / Used to Mandatory / Must use

### ISA Interchange Control Header

Pos: Max: 1
Not Defined - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 16

User Option (Usage): Must use

**Purpose:** To start and identify an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref ISA01	<u>ld</u> l01	Element Name Authorization Information Qualifier	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use			
		Description: Code to identify the type of in All valid standard codes are used. (Total			Authorization I	nformation			
ISA02	102	Authorization Information	М	AN	10/10	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Information used for additional interchange sender or the data in the interchathorization Information Qualifier (I01)							
ISA03	103	Security Information Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		Description: Code to identify the type of in All valid standard codes are used. (Total			Security Inform	nation			
ISA04	104	Security Information	М	AN	10/10	Must use			
<b>Description:</b> This is used for identifying the security information about the interchan sender or the data in the interchange; the type of information is set by the Security Information Qualifier (I03)									
ISA05	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Qualifier to designate the system/method of code structure used to designate the sender or receiver ID element being qualified							
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 38, Inc.  Code Name  ZZ Mutually Defined	luded: 1	)					
ISA06	106	Interchange Sender ID	М	AN	15/15	Must use			
		Description: Identification code published receiver ID to route data to them; the sende element User Note 1: INDIGOGM							
ISA07	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Qualifier to designate the systhe sender or receiver ID element being qualifier to designate the systhesis and the system of th	alified		ode structure u	sed to designate			
ISA08	107	Interchange Receiver ID	М	AN	15/15	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Identification code published used by the sender as their sending ID, thu receiving ID to route data to them							

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	
ISA09	108	Interchange Date	М	DT	6/6	Must use	
		Description: Date of the interchange					
ISA10	109	Interchange Time	М	TM	4/4	Must use	
		Description: Time of the interchange					
ISA11	I10	Interchange Control Standards Identifier	M	ID	1/1	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Code to identify the agency responsible for the control standard used by the message that is enclosed by the interchange header and trailer <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 1)</b>					
ISA12	l11	Interchange Control Version Number	М	ID	5/5	Must use	
		Description: Code specifying the version n	umber o	of the inte	erchange contro	ol segments	
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 14, Incl.  Code Name  O0307 Draft Standards for Trial Use Approx Review Board through October 1999  O0400 Standard Issued as ANSI X12.5-199  O0401 Draft Standards for Trial Use Approx Review Board through October 1999  O0402 Draft Standards for Trial Use Approx Review Board through October 1999	ved for I 6 97 ved for I 7 ved for I	Publication	on by ASC X12	Procedures	
ISA13	l12	Interchange Control Number	М	N0	9/9	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> A control number assigned by	the inte	erchange	sender		
ISA14	I13	Acknowledgment Requested	М	ID	1/1	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Code sent by the sender to re All valid standard codes are used. (Total			ange acknowle	dgment (TA1)	
ISA15	l14	Usage Indicator	М	ID	1/1	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Code to indicate whether data production or information <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total</b>		-	s interchange e	envelope is test,	
ISA16	l15	Component Element Separator	М		1/1	Must use	
		Description: Type is not applicable; the con	mponen	t elemen	t separator is a	delimiter and	

**Description:** Type is not applicable; the component element separator is a delimiter and not a data element; this field provides the delimiter used to separate component data elements within a composite data structure; this value must be different than the data element separator and the segment terminator

### **GS** Functional Group Header

Pos: Max: 1
Not Defined - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 8

User Option (Usage): Must use

**Purpose:** To indicate the beginning of a functional group and to provide control information

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>		
GS01	479	Functional Identifier Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use		
		Description: Code identifying a group of a	pplicatio	n related	transaction se	ts		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 240, In	cluded:	1)				
		Code Name						
		PC Purchase Order Change Request -	Buyer In	itiated (8	60)			
GS02	142	Application Sender's Code	М	AN	2/15	Must use		
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying party sending transmission; codes agreed to by trading partners						
		User Note 1:						
		INDIGOGM						
GS03	124	Application Receiver's Code	М	AN	2/15	Must use		
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying party receiving partners	ng trans	mission;	codes agreed	to by trading		
GS04	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use		
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMM	1DD					
GS05	337	Time	М	TM	4/8	Must use		
		<b>Description:</b> Time expressed in 24-hour of HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = hoseconds (00-59) and DD = decimal second = tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99)	ours (00- s; decim	-23), M =	minutes (00-59	9), S = integer		
GS06	28	Group Control Number	М	N0	1/9	Must use		
		Description: Assigned number originated	and mai	ntained b	y the sender			
GS07	455	Responsible Agency Code	М	ID	1/2	Must use		
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the issuer of with Data Element 480	the star	ndard; thi	s code is used	in conjunction		
		All valid standard codes are used. (Total	l Codes	: 2)				
GS08	480	Version / Release / Industry Identifier Code	М	AN	1/12	Must use		
		<b>Description:</b> Code indicating the version, rEDI standard being used, including the GS						

**Description:** Code indicating the version, release, subrelease, and industry identifier of the EDI standard being used, including the GS and GE segments; if code in DE455 in GS segment is X, then in DE 480 positions 1-3 are the version number; positions 4-6 are the release and subrelease, level of the version; and positions 7-12 are the industry or trade association identifiers (optionally assigned by user); if code in DE455 in GS segment is T, then other formats are allowed

Code List Summary (Total Codes: 39, Included: 1)

#### Code Name

004010 Draft Standards Approved for Publication by ASC X12 Procedures Review Board through October 1997

#### **Semantics:**

- 1. GS04 is the group date.
- 2. GS05 is the group time.
- 3. The data interchange control number GS06 in this header must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group trailer, GE02.

#### **Comments:**

1. A functional group of related transaction sets, within the scope of X12 standards, consists of a collection of similar transaction sets enclosed by a functional group header and a functional group trailer.

### **ST** Transaction Set Header

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the start of a transaction set and to assign a control number

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref ST01	<u>ld</u> 143	Element Name Transaction Set Identifier Code	Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 3/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use		
		Description: Code uniquely identifying a Transaction Set						
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 298, Inc.CodeName860Purchase Order Change Request - Expression		•				
ST02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use		
		<b>Description:</b> Identifying control number that functional group assigned by the originator				saction set		

#### **Semantics:**

1. The transaction set identifier (ST01) used by the translation routines of the interchange partners to select the appropriate transaction set definition (e.g., 810 selects the Invoice Transaction Set).

## **BCH** Beginning Segment for Purchase Order Change

Pos: 020 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Must use

**Purpose:** To indicate the beginning of the Purchase Order Change Transaction Set and transmit identifying numbers and dates

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref BCH01	<u>ld</u> 353	Element Name Transaction Set Burness Code	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use			
ВСПОТ	333	Transaction Set Purpose Code  Description: Code identifying purpose of tra			2/2	wust use			
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 65, Included: 2)  Code Name							
		01 Cancellation							
		04 Change							
BCH02	92	Purchase Order Type Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		Description: Code specifying the type of Purchase Order							
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 69, Included: 1)							
		<u>Code</u> <u>Name</u>							
		CP Change to Purchase Order							
BCH03	324	Purchase Order Number	M	AN	1/22	Must use			
		Description: Identifying number for Purchase Order assigned by the orderer/purchaser							
		User Note 1:							
		Purchase Order Number is 10 digits long (M.		,					
BCH04	328	Release Number	0	AN	1/30	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Number identifying a release at the parties involved in the transaction	against a	a Purchas	se Order previo	ously placed by			
BCH06	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use			
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMI	DD						
BCH11	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use			
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMI	DD						

#### **Semantics:**

- 1. BCH06 is the date assigned by the purchaser to purchase order.
- 2. BCH11 is the date of the purchase order change request.

### **REF** Reference Identification

Pos: 050 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify identifying information

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
REF01	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	М	ID	2/3	Must use
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference	e Identif	ication		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 1503, Ir	ncluded	: 2)		
		Code Name				
		CO Customer Order Number				
		PD Promotion/Deal Number				
REF02	127	Reference Identification	М	AN	1/30	Must use
	Description: Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as					

specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

#### **Syntax Rules:**

1. R0203 - At least one of REF02 or REF03 is required.

### FOB F.O.B. Related Instructions

Pos: 080 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 5

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify transportation instructions relating to shipment

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>			
FOB01	146	Shipment Method of Payment	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		Description: Code identifying payment terms for transportation charges							
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 28, Inc Code Name	luded: 1	)					
		DE Per Contract							
FOB04	334	Transportation Terms Qualifier Code	0	ID	2/2	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the source of <b>User Note 1:</b>	of the tra	nsportati	on terms				
		Supported Codes:							
		01 Incoterms							
		02 Trade Terms Code							
		ZZ Mutually Defined		_					
		All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 3)							
FOB05	335	Transportation Terms Code	Χ	ID	3/3	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the trade terms which apply to the shipment transportation responsibility							
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 25, Inc	luded: 1	3)					
		Code Name							
		CFR Cost and Freight							
		CIF Cost, Insurance, and Freight							
		CIP Carriage and Insurance Paid To							
		CPT Carriage Paid To							
		DAF Delivered at Frontier							
		DDP Delivered Duty Paid							
		DDU Deliver Duty Unpaid							
		DEQ Delivered Ex Quay							
		DES Delivered Ex Ship EXW Ex Works							
		FAS Free Alongside Ship							
		FCA Free Carrier							
		FOB Free on Board							
FOB06	309	Location Qualifier	Х	ID	1/2	Used			
		Description: Code identifying type of local	tion						

Code List Summary (Total Codes: 172, Included: 1)

Code Name

ZZ Mutually Defined

FOB07 352 **Description** O AN 1/80 Used

Description: A free-form description to clarify the related data elements and their content

#### **Syntax Rules:**

- 1. C0405 If FOB04 is present, then FOB05 is required.
- 2. C0706 If FOB07 is present, then FOB06 is required.

#### **Semantics:**

- 1. FOB01 indicates which party will pay the carrier.
- 2. FOB06 is the code specifying the title passage location.

### **CSH** Sales Requirements

Pos: 110 Max: 5 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify general conditions or requirements of the sale

**Element Summary:** 

RefIdElement NameReqTypeMin/MaxUsageCSH01563Sales Requirement CodeMID1/2Must use

Description: Code to identify a specific requirement or agreement of sale

Code List Summary (Total Codes: 54, Included: 2)

Code Name

N No Back Order

Y Back Order if Out of Stock

DT

Μ

8/8

Must use

### **DTM** Date/Time Reference

Pos: 150 Max: 10 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify pertinent dates and times

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
DTM01	374	Date/Time Qualifier	М	ID	3/3	Must use
		Description: Code specifying type of da	ite or time,	or both c	late and time	
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 1112	2, Included	: 4)		
		Code Name				
		001 Cancel After				
		002 Delivery Requested				
		010 Requested Ship				
		118 Requested Pick-up				

**Description:** Date expressed as CCYYMMDD

#### **Syntax Rules:**

373

**Date** 

DTM02

1. R020305 - At least one of DTM02, DTM03 or DTM05 is required.

## **TD5** Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)

Pos: 240 Max: 12 Heading - Conditional Loop: N/A Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the carrier and sequence of routing and provide transit time information

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>			
TD502	66	Identification Code Qualifier	M	ID	1/2	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Code designating the system/method of code structure used for Identification Code (67)							
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 215, Inc	cluded:	1)					
	Code Name								
		2 Standard Carrier Alpha Code (SCAC	<b>;</b> )						
TD503	67	Identification Code	М	AN	2/80	Must use			
		Description: Code identifying a party or other code							
		User Note 1:							
		The TD503 should contain the 2 to 4 SCAC	code re	epresentii	ng the Carrier				
		Ex. Canada Post = CPC							
		United Parcel Service =- UPSN, etc.							
TD505	387	Routing	Х	AN	1/35	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Free-form description of the re originating carrier's identity	outing o	r request	ed routing for s	shipment, or the			
TD512	284	Service Level Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Code indicating the level of traby the transportation carrier	ansport	ation serv	rice or the billin	g service offered			
		User Note 1:							
		ES = Premium Shipping							
		G2 = Standard Shipping							
		SE = Next Day							

#### **Syntax Rules:**

- 1. R0204050612 At least one of TD502, TD504, TD505, TD506 or TD512 is required.
- 2. C0203 If TD502 is present, then TD503 is required.

#### **Comments:**

1. When specifying a routing sequence to be used for the shipment movement in lieu of specifying each carrier within the movement, use TD502 to identify the party responsible for defining the routing sequence, and use TD503 to identify the actual routing sequence, specified by the party identified in TD502.

### **Loop Reference Identification**

Pos: 285 Repeat: 1000

Optional Loop: N9 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

#### **Loop Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
285	N9	Reference Identification	0	1		Used
290	MSG	Message Text	0	1000		Used

### **N9** Reference Identification

Pos: 285 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N901	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	М	ID	2/3	Must use
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference	ce Identif	ication		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 1503,	Included	: 2)		
		Code Name				
		L1 Letters or Notes				
		PO Purchase Order Number				
N902	127	Reference Identification	М	AN	1/30	Must use

**Description:** Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as

specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

User Note 1:

When N901=PO then N902 will contain the Purchase Order Number

When N901=L1 then N902 will contain SHP to identify the type of note to follow in MSG01.

SHP = Shipping Note

#### **Syntax Rules:**

1. R0203 - At least one of N902 or N903 is required.

### **MSG** Message Text

Pos: 290 Max: 1000 Heading - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To provide a free-form format that allows the transmission of text information

**Element Summary:** 

RefIdElement NameReqTypeMin/MaxUsageMSG01933Free-Form Message TextMAN1/264Must use

**Description:** Free-form message text

**User Note 1:** 

If N901 = PO then MSG\_01 may contain a PO related message.

Example:

MSG\*This purchase order belongs to Blanket PO #234567890

If N901 = L1 & N902 = SHP then MSG01 will contain a Shipping Note

### **Loop Name**

Pos: 300 Repeat: 200 Mandatory

Loop: N1 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

#### **Loop Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Usage</u>
300	N1	Name	М	1		Must use
310	N2	Additional Name Information	0	2		Used
320	N3	Address Information	С	2		Used
330	N4	Geographic Location	С	>1		Used

### N1 Name

Pos: 300 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N101	98	Entity Identifier Code	М	ID	2/3	Must use

**Description:** Code identifying an organizational entity, a physical location, property or an individual

Code List Summary (Total Codes: 1312, Included: 4)

Code Name

BT Bill-to-Party

FS Final Scheduled Destination

ST Ship To VN Vendor

N102 93 **Name** X AN 1/60 Used

**Description:** Free-form name

N103 66 Identification Code Qualifier X ID 1/2 Used

**Description:** Code designating the system/method of code structure used for Identification Code (67)

**User Note 1:** 

Not sent on direct to consumer (drop ship) POs changes for the ship to

location (N101=ST)

Code List Summary (Total Codes: 215, Included: 2)

Code Name

1 D-U-N-S Number, Dun & Bradstreet

15 Standard Address Number (SAN)

N104 67 Identification Code X AN 2/80 Used

**Description:** Code identifying a party or other code

User Note 1:

When N101=FS is present, N104 will contain the Marked For Location (Final Destination Location).

When N101=FS is \*not\* present you can assume that the Ship To N104 (N101=ST) is the Final Destination of the goods.

**User Note 2:** 

Not sent on direct to consumer (drop ship) POs changes for the ship to location (N101=ST)

**User Note 3:** The D-U-N-S Number is only used when N101 = VN

When N103=15, the N104 Min / Max length must be 7/7

#### Syntax Rules:

1. R0203 - At least one of N102 or N103 is required.

2. P0304 - If either N103 or N104 is present, then the other is required.

#### **Comments:**

 This segment, used alone, provides the most efficient method of providing organizational identification. To obtain this efficiency the "ID Code" (N104) must provide a key to the table maintained by the transaction processing party.

### **N2** Additional Name Information

Pos: 310 Max: 2 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify additional names or those longer than 35 characters in length

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N201	93	Name	M	AN	1/60	Must use
		Description: Free-form name				
N202	93	Name	0	AN	1/60	Used

### **N3** Address Information

Pos: 320 Max: 2 Heading - Conditional Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the location of the named party

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N301	166	Address Information	M	AN	1/55	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Address information				
N302	166	Address Information	0	AN	1/55	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Address information				

#### **User Note 1:**

Sent on direct to consumer (drop ship) POs changes for the ship to location (N101=ST)

### **N4** Geographic Location

Pos: 330 Max: >1 Heading - Conditional Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the geographic place of the named party

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N401	19	City Name	M	AN	2/30	Must use
		Description: Free-form text for city name				
N402	156	State or Province Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code (Standard State/Province agency	ce) as d	efined by	appropriate go	overnment
N403	116	Postal Code	М	ID	3/15	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code defining international poblanks (zip code for United States)	ostal zor	ne code e	excluding punct	uation and
N404	26	Country Code	М	ID	2/3	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the country				

#### **Comments:**

- 1. A combination of either N401 through N404, or N405 and N406 may be adequate to specify a location.
- 2. N402 is required only if city name (N401) is in the U.S. or Canada.

#### **User Note 1:**

Sent on direct to consumer (drop ship) POs changes for the ship to location (N101=ST)

### **Loop Line Item Change**

Pos: 010 Repeat: >1 Optional

Loop: POC Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify changes to a line item

#### **Loop Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
010	POC	Line Item Change	M	1		Must use
040	CTP	Pricing Information	M	>1		Must use
050		Loop PID	M		1000	Must use
090	PO4	Item Physical Details	Ο	>1		Used
320		Loop N9	0		1000	Used

### **POC** Line Item Change

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: POC Elements: 9

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify changes to a line item

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref POC01	<u>ld</u> 350	Element Name Assigned Identification	Req M	<u>Type</u> AN	Min/Max 1/20	<u>Usage</u> Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Alphanumeric characters assi	igned fo	r differen	tiation within a	transaction set	
POC02	670	Change or Response Type Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the type of cl	hange to	the line	item		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 29, Incl  Code Name  Al Add Additional Item(s)  DI Delete Item(s)  PC Price Change  PQ Unit Price/Quantity Change  QD Quantity Decrease  QI Quantity Increase  RZ Replace All Values	uded: 7	)			
POC04	671	Quantity Left to Receive	М	R	1/9	Must use	
		Description: Quantity left to receive as qualified by the unit of measure					
		User Note 1: Adjusted Quantity					
POC05	C001	Composite Unit of Measure	М	Comp		Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> To identify a composite unit o of use)	f measu	re(See F	igures Append	lix for examples	
POC05-01	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the units in w which a measurement has been taken	/hich a \	/alue is b	eing expressed	d, or manner in	
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 794, Inc Code Name EA Each	cluded:	1)			
POC06	212	Unit Price	М	R	1/17	Must use	
		Description: Price per unit of product, serv	ice, con	nmodity,	etc.		
POC08	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the type/sour Product/Service ID (234)	rce of th	e descrip	tive number us	sed in	
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 477, Inc.  Code Name  EN European Article Number (EAN) (2-5)		2)			

		Code Name UP U.P.C. Consumer Package Code (1-5)	5-5-1)			
POC09	234	Product/Service ID	М	AN	1/48	Must use
		Description: Identifying number for a produ	ct or se	rvice		
POC10	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the type/source Product/Service ID (234)	ce of the	e descript	ive number us	sed in
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 477, Inc.  Code Name  MG Manufacturer's Part Number	luded: ´	1)		
POC11	234	Product/Service ID	Χ	AN	1/48	Used
		Description: Identifying number for a produ	ct or se	rvice		

#### **Syntax Rules:**

- 1. P0809 If either POC08 or POC09 is present, then the other is required.
- 2. P1011 If either POC10 or POC11 is present, then the other is required.

#### **Semantics:**

1. POC01 is the purchase order line item identification.

### **CTP** Pricing Information

Pos: 040 Max: >1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: POC Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify pricing information

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>		
CTP02	236	Price Identifier Code	М	ID	3/3	Must use		
		Description: Code identifying pricing specif	fication					
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 164, Included: 1)						
		Code Name						
		RES Resale						
CTP03	212	Unit Price	М	R	1/17	Must use		

Description: Price per unit of product, service, commodity, etc.

#### **User Note 1:**

The CTP segment will specify expected resale price in Canadian dollars only.

### **Loop Product/Item Description**

Pos: 050 Repeat: 1000 Mandatory

Loop: PID Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

#### **Loop Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
050	PID	Product/Item Description	M	1		Must use

### PID Product/Item Description

Pos: 050 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: PID Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>		
PID01	349	Item Description Type	М	ID	1/1	Must use		
		Description: Code indicating the format of a description						
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 3, Included: 1)						
		Code Name						
		F Free-form						
PID05	352	Description	М	AN	1/80	Must use		

**Description:** A free-form description to clarify the related data elements and their content

#### Syntax Rules:

1. R0405 - At least one of PID04 or PID05 is required.

#### **Comments:**

1. If PID01 equals "F", then PID05 is used. If PID01 equals "S", then PID04 is used. If PID01 equals "X", then both PID04 and PID05 are used.

### **PO4** Item Physical Details

Pos: 090 Max: >1 Detail - Optional Loop: POC Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the physical qualities, packaging, weights, and dimensions relating to the item

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>			
PO401	356	Pack	M	N0	1/6	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> The number of inner containers, or number of eaches if there are no inner containers, per outer container							
		User Note 1:							
		Number of eaches in an inner case							
PO402	357	Size	М	R	1/8	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Size of supplier units in pack							
		User Note 1:							
		Number of eaches in a master carton							
PO403	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	Х	ID	2/2	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the units in which a value is being expressed, or manner in which a measurement has been taken							
		1)							
		Code Name							
		EA Each							

#### Syntax Rules:

1. P0203 - If either PO402 or PO403 is present, then the other is required.

#### **Comments:**

 PO403 - The "Unit or Basis for Measure Code" in this segment position is for purposes of defining the pack (PO401) /size (PO402) measure which indicates the quantity in the inner pack unit. For example: If the carton contains 24 12-Ounce packages, it would be described as follows: Data element 356 = "24"; Data element 357 = "12"; Data element 355 = "OZ".

### **Loop Reference Identification**

Pos: 320 Repeat: 1000

Optional

Loop: N9 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

#### **Loop Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Usage</u>
320	N9	Reference Identification	0	1		Used
330	MSG	Message Text	0	1000		Used

### **N9** Reference Identification

Pos: 320 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> N901	<u>ld</u> 128	Element Name Reference Identification Qualifier	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use				
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference Identification								
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 1503, Included: 1)  Code Name  L1 Letters or Notes								
N902	127	Reference Identification	М	AN	1/30	Must use				
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier								
		User Note 1:								
		When N901=L1 then N902 will contain one of the following 3 characters codes to identify								
		the type of note to follow in MSG01.	the type of note to follow in MSG01.							
		. GFT: Gift Message								
		. CCG: Customized Message								

#### **Syntax Rules:**

- 1. R0203 At least one of N902 or N903 is required.
- 2. C0605 If N906 is present, then N905 is required.

#### **Semantics:**

- 1. N906 reflects the time zone which the time reflects.
- 2. N907 contains data relating to the value cited in N902.

#### **User Note 1:**

N9 segment for future use only

### **MSG** Message Text

Pos: 330 Max: 1000 Detail - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To provide a free-form format that allows the transmission of text information

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
MSG01	933	Free-Form Message Text	M	AN	1/264	Must use

Description: Free-form message text

**User Note 1:** 

If N901 = L1 & N902 = GFT then MSG01 will contain a Gift Message

If N901 = L1 & N902 = CCG then MSG01 will contain a Customized Message

#### Syntax Rules:

1. C0302 - If MSG03 is present, then MSG02 is required.

#### **Semantics:**

1. MSG03 is the number of lines to advance before printing.

#### **Comments:**

- 1. MSG02 is not related to the specific characteristics of a printer, but identifies top of page, advance a line, etc.
- 2. If MSG02 is "AA Advance the specified number of lines before print" then MSG03 is required.

#### **User Note 1:**

MSG segment for future use only

### **Loop Transaction Totals**

Pos: 010 Repeat: 1
Mandatory
Loop: CTT Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

#### **Loop Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
010	CTT	Transaction Totals	M	1		Must use

### **CTT** Transaction Totals

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: CTT Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
CTT01	354	Number of Line Items	М	N0	1/6	Must use
		Description: Total number of line items in	the trans	saction se	et	
CTT02	347	Hash Total	М	R	1/10	Must use

#### **Syntax Rules:**

- 1. P0304 If either CTT03 or CTT04 is present, then the other is required.
- 2. P0506 If either CTT05 or CTT06 is present, then the other is required.

#### **Comments:**

1. This segment is intended to provide hash totals to validate transaction completeness and correctness.

### **SE** Transaction Set Trailer

Pos: 030 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

**Purpose:** To indicate the end of the transaction set and provide the count of the transmitted segments (including the beginning (ST) and ending (SE) segments)

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
SE01	96	Number of Included Segments	М	N0	1/10	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Total number of segments inconsegments	cluded ir	n a transa	action set inclu	ding ST and SE
SE02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Identifying control number that functional group assigned by the originator				nsaction set

#### **Comments:**

1. SE is the last segment of each transaction set.

### **GE** Functional Group Trailer

Pos: Max: 1
Not Defined - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the end of a functional group and to provide control information

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
GE01	97	Number of Transaction Sets Included	М	N0	1/6	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Total number of transaction s interchange (transmission) group terminate			9	•
GE02	28	Group Control Number	М	N0	1/9	Must use
		Descriptions Assistant and according to the			41	

Description: Assigned number originated and maintained by the sender

#### **Semantics:**

1. The data interchange control number GE02 in this trailer must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group header, GS06.

#### **Comments:**

1. The use of identical data interchange control numbers in the associated functional group header and trailer is designed to maximize functional group integrity. The control number is the same as that used in the corresponding header.

### **IEA** Interchange Control Trailer

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

**Purpose:** To define the end of an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

#### **Element Summary:**

	Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
	IEA01	I16	Number of Included Functional Groups	М	N0	1/5	Must use
			Description: A count of the number of funct	ional gr	oups inc	luded in an inte	erchange
	IEA02	l12	Interchange Control Number	М	N0	9/9	Must use
<b>Description:</b> A control number assigned by the in				the inte	rchange	sender	

### **Appendix**

#### All Included Elements in All Included Segments

<u>ld</u>	<u>Elements</u>	Used in Segments
C001	Composite Unit of Measure	POC
19	City Name	N4
26	Country Code	N4
28	Group Control Number	GE, GS
66	Identification Code Qualifier	N1, TD5
67	Identification Code	N1, TD5
92	Purchase Order Type Code	BCH
93	Name	N1, N2
96	Number of Included Segments	SE
97	Number of Transaction Sets Included	GE
98	Entity Identifier Code	N1
116	Postal Code	N4
124	Application Receiver's Code	GS
127	Reference Identification	N9, REF
128	Reference Identification Qualifier	N9, REF
142	Application Sender's Code	GS
143	Transaction Set Identifier Code	ST
146	Shipment Method of Payment	FOB
156	State or Province Code	N4
166	Address Information	N3
212	Unit Price	CTP, POC
234	Product/Service ID	POC
235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	POC
236	Price Identifier Code	CTP
284	Service Level Code	TD5
309	Location Qualifier	FOB
324	Purchase Order Number	BCH
328	Release Number	BCH
329	Transaction Set Control Number	SE, ST
334	Transportation Terms Qualifier Code	FOB
335	Transportation Terms Code	FOB
337	Time	GS
347	Hash Total	CTT
349	Item Description Type	PID
350	Assigned Identification	POC
352	Description	FOB, PID
353	Transaction Set Purpose Code	BCH
354	Number of Line Items	CTT
355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	PO4, POC
356	Pack	PO4
357	Size	PO4

<u>ld</u>	<u>Elements</u>	Used in Segments
373	Date	BCH, DTM, GS
374	Date/Time Qualifier	DTM
387	Routing	TD5
455	Responsible Agency Code	GS
479	Functional Identifier Code	GS
480	Version / Release / Industry Identifier Code	GS
563	Sales Requirement Code	CSH
670	Change or Response Type Code	POC
671	Quantity Left to Receive	POC
933	Free-Form Message Text	MSG
I01	Authorization Information Qualifier	ISA
102	Authorization Information	ISA
103	Security Information Qualifier	ISA
104	Security Information	ISA
105	Interchange ID Qualifier	ISA
106	Interchange Sender ID	ISA
107	Interchange Receiver ID	ISA
108	Interchange Date	ISA
109	Interchange Time	ISA
I10	Interchange Control Standards Identifier	ISA
I11	Interchange Control Version Number	ISA
l12	Interchange Control Number	IEA, ISA
I13	Acknowledgment Requested	ISA
l14	Usage Indicator	ISA
l15	Component Element Separator	ISA
I16	Number of Included Functional Groups	IEA